#### MOBILE COUNTY COMMISSION

The Mobile County Commission met in regular session in the Government Plaza Auditorium, in the City of Mobile, Alabama, on Monday, November 27, 2017, at 10:00 o'clock, a.m., Central Time. The following members of the Commission were:

PRESENT ABSENT

President Merceria Ludgood Commissioner Connie Hudson Commissioner Jerry Carl

Commissioner Ludgood acted as chairman of the meeting and John Pafenbach, Administrator and Clerk of the Commission, acted as clerk of the meeting. The Chairman stated that due notice of the time, place and purpose of the meeting having been posted as required by law, and a quorum being present, the meeting was open for the transaction of business.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### INVOCATION

The invocation was given by Reverend Leroy Lampkin, Pastor of Berean Baptist Church, 3709 Alba Club Road, Mobile, Alabama.

\_\_\_\_\_

Tuerk Schlesinger, Chief Executive Officer, AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc.: Good morning, Commissioners. Thank you very much for the opportunity to address you about the mental health situation in our community. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. is a public mental health center that represents mental health care in our community in the same way public health represents health care in our community. Today, I want to remind the Commission that AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. is here to do two (2) things as a Mental Health Board. First, to make the Commission aware of any kind of serious problems going on in our community when it involves mental health. Second, is to let the Commission know what AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc.'s position is, and that is to try to help our community solve those kinds of issues. The Mobile Infirmary closed its general psychiatric unit last week. They closed seventeen (17) acute adults' psychiatric hospital beds; they moved nine (9) of those seventeen (17) acute adults' psychiatric hospital beds into their geriatric unit and moved the other eight (8) beds to the North Baldwin Infirmary. It left a void, and that void must be filled to ensure people who are

experiencing mental health crisis may receive care. Mobile Infirmary was the sole service acute care hospital for providing inpatient psychiatric care for adults. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. and the EastPointe Hospital provide evaluation services for Probate Court and care for those who are involuntarily committed. The EastPointe Hospital has limited capacity for serving voluntary psychiatric patients, and as a freestanding psychiatric hospital, we are not allowed to bill Medicaid. Approximately one-third (1/3) of all our patients are Medicaid recipients, but federal law, the Institution for Mental Disease (IMD) Exclusion, bars federal Medicaid funds to facilities with more than sixteen (16) beds. We are concerned about the psychiatric patients who have comorbid conditions which is a patient with a psychiatric condition and a medical condition at the same time. They really need to be served in an acute care hospital. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. does not have the level of medical care in its hospital as an acute care hospital. Only acute care hospitals are reimbursed by Medicaid which is one of the primary funding sources for inpatient mental health care. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. has continuously been a component for adding general acute psychiatric beds in our region. We have constantly talked to other psychiatric hospital providers urging them to open new adult psychiatric beds such as Providence Hospital, Springhill Medical Center, University of South Alabama Health System, Thomas Hospital, South Baldwin Regional Medical Center, and North Baldwin Infirmary. The reimbursement of those beds is not doable for some of those hospitals because the amount of indigent care associated with mentally ill patients is very high. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. is the largest mental health care provider in Alabama, and our continuous care often begins in the emergency department of one of Mobile's acute care hospitals. We have provided services to twenty-one thousand one hundred twenty (21,120) active patients in Mobile County, and Baldwin County has provided services to eight thousand one hundred ten (8,110) active patients. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. has sixteen (16) local outpatient offices that serve children and adults. We have twenty-six (26) group homes, two hundred forty-five (245) beds for psychiatric adults, one hundred eighty-five (185) beds in semi-independent apartment type facilities, a 24-hour crisis response team, a special jail diversion program, a one hundred (100) bed psychiatric hospital children called BayPointe Hospital, an eighty-two (82) bed hospital for adults called EastPointe Hospital, and a sixteen (16) bed facility called Subacute Care. AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. does psychiatric consultations in five (5) of the acute care hospitals in our region. For example, if a patient is in the emergency room (ER) or in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) with an overdose situation, we have doctors there every day of the week who can do consultations with those patients to help

stabilize them and find a place for them to go for further psychiatric care. Those hospitals are Providence Hospital, Springhill Medical Center, University of South Alabama Health System, Thomas Hospital, and Washington County Hospital. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. is currently working towards starting a new consultation service with the South Baldwin Regional Medical Center. The only one we do not have are Mobile Infirmary, but we have been in discussions with them since they closed their unit and North Baldwin Infirmary. The closing of the adult psychiatric unit, at Mobile Infirmary has resulted in a community crisis for hospitalization of a person in psychiatric distress. The local first responders share our concern. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. anticipates psychiatric patients will be present in emergency departments throughout our community. We are prepared to partner with all area hospitals to provide psychiatric consultations in emergency departments to facilitate appropriate placement for those patients who are most in need. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. is our safety net that is why we are here. We were not in the hospital business at all because we were a community mental health center. The County Commission approached me back in 1999 and 2000, and the City Council approached me at the same  $\,$ time. They asked us to go into the hospital business because, in the 1990s, two hundred seventy-seven (277) hospital beds for mentally ill patients were closed in Mobile and Baldwin Counties leaving only Mobile Infirmary. At that time they had thirty-four (34) beds; seventeen (17) for geriatrics and seventeen (17) for the general population. The AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. came in and opened BayPointe Hospital and then, EastPointe Hospital. We are the safety net, and we have strategically tried to build a traditional system of care designed specifically for serving the underserved populations. An inadequate response to inpatient psychiatric needs will strain other community resources including the Metro Jail, Probate Court, emergency departments of all of our hospitals; it is a huge concern in our community. I do want to add one other thing because there has been some discussion about reopening Searcy Hospital. We need to remember Searcy Hospital did not have the kind of beds we are losing in Mobile; Searcy Hospital was only for committed patients, we are losing acute care hospital beds for patients voluntarily seeking treatment. So reopening Searcy Hospital is not the answer and I do want the community to understand that. Are there any questions I may answer?

Commissioner Connie Hudson: We are experiencing a crisis in psychiatric care in this community with the closing of those inpatient acute care beds. What are the options at this point, I mean what happens to these patients, the voluntary patients?

Mr. Schlesinger: Our current options are on a patient needs treatment. If they are already in AltaPointe system, we will work with our access-to-care department to go ahead and place them in our hospital if we have a bed available. Currently, our adult hospital is full, and it stays full. We have sixteen (16) beds in our hospital that are not open due to sheer cost. Only twenty-one percent (21%) of our patients have a paying source.

Commissioner Jerry L. Carl: Can you repeat that?

Mr. Schlesinger: Only twenty-one percent (21%) of our patients have a paying source who we are able to bill. The other seventy-nine percent (79%) are Medicaid patients whom we cannot bill or indigent care who are not able to pay or do not have insurance. Our options right now are for us to continue to use ours as much as possible or send our patients out to places like Dothan, Montgomery, mostly Birmingham that have the most acute beds, but they stay relatively full also. We know that if there was funding for this population, we would certainly be able to open up more beds for a regional approach. We currently are partners with all of the acute care hospitals. We do not have enough beds to make up for the loss of those seventeen (17) beds.

**Commissioner Hudson:** So the issue with mental health facilities like AltaPointe in being able to add additional beds, is basically the fact that only twenty-one percent (21%) of patients are able to pay and the rest are indigent.

Mr. Schlesinger: That is correct.

**Commissioner Hudson:** So it is cost prohibited basically for an institution other than an acute care inpatient facility because they are the ones receiving the Medicaid, correct?

Mr. Schlesinger: That is correct, and for us to try to open up more beds without any funding only jeopardizes our ability to stay in business.

**Commissioner Hudson:** If someone else came to town and opened a facility like AltaPointe, will it be the same situation, twenty-one percent (21%)?

Mr. Schlesinger: We would be splitting the twenty-one percent (21%); so we will probably have ten percent (10%), and they would have ten percent (10%). Without that twenty-one percent (21%) our hospital cannot make it either. This is a safety net issue we want to keep AltaPointe Health Systems, Inc. up and running so we can take as many patients as possible I do not want to put that hospital in any risk of having to close. The real answer

will be for one of the acute care hospitals or the majority of the acute care hospitals to open up general psychiatric beds since they are the ones who get reimbursed for it.

Commissioner Carl: Obviously, there is no profit.

Mr. Schlesinger: At EastPointe Hospital there is
never a profit.

Commissioner Carl: I was talking about hospitals, in general, getting behind the psychiatric care business.

Mr. Schlesinger: Oh no, obviously, you can see this is not something people are lined up to get in.

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: As I listened, I didn't realize that you couldn't bill for Medicaid.

Mr. Schlesinger: We can bill only for the children on the hospital side, but for adults twenty-one (21) to sixty-five (65) years old we cannot bill.

Commission President Ludgood: So the only real source we have for funding hospitals is our Indigent Care Funds. Right now, my guess, which I don't even know if we have the latitude to decide if we could prioritize this in a way that it might be an incentive for some acute care hospitals to get back in the business. We may just have to consider looking at that as one of our options and let somebody sue us and then find out we can't do it, maybe we can work this problem out. Even with those beds, we still have a large number of people walking around and not getting the services. They are just are walking up and down the streets, in the malls, downtown Mobile and in Bienville Square. It is a growing problem, not a shrinking problem.

Mr. Schlesinger: The federal government and different federal lawsuits have already discussed people's right to be free of institutionalization. We are seeing people who are mentally ill that have the right to seek treatment or not to seek treatment. The more significant part of our problem is that we have a lot of patients throughout this country do not seek treatment as their choice. Our only choice for those who do not seek treatment is to file an involuntary action against them to put them into a mental care facility. We basically have three (3) segments of our population: individuals who will seek treatment when they need it, individuals who will not seek treatment, and individuals who are involuntarily put through the process. We continuously struggle with those people that we see on the streets who are not voluntarily seeking treatment.

**Commissioner Hudson:** I really see this as much bigger than a local problem. This is a problem we need our Legislature to step in and help us address. Obviously,

this is not the only community where a crisis is happening of this nature. Hospitals all across the state are finding it untenable to continue with psychiatric services. I really think this should be a major focus for our Legislature and I know we have a meeting coming up with our local delegation, we need to address them about this. There needs to be funding for this, and with our little Indigent Care Fund, we were finally able to resolve the allocations that are not enough to address the current problem of the indigent care condition in addition to psychiatric services. I think we just need help, and they need to step forward and figure out a way to help solve this problem.

**Commission President Ludgood:** Am I correct in saying, the state mental health budget continues to shrink, shrink, and shrink?

Mr. Schlesinger: Correct. We have seen the closure of Searcy Hospital, the downsizing of Bryce Hospital in Tuscaloosa, the closure of Greil Memorial Psychiatric Hospital in Montgomery, the closure of North Alabama Regional Hospital in Decatur, and the closure of Eufaula Hospital for Children in East Alabama. What happened was back in 2007 or 2008, thirty-five million dollars (\$35,000,000.00) to forty million dollars (\$40,000,000.00) of the mental health budget was cut out of the General Fund. That is when those closures started. Simultaneously federal lawsuits filed in Georgia and in Alabama mandating the institutionalization of inpatient stay. All of those issues are what have led to this problem. The real problem in Alabama is that we have the strictest Medicaid eligibility requirement, so we have the least people on Medicaid of any state per capita. We have a tremendous amount of indigent care, uninsured people with no insurance. Not even with the Affordable Care Act were people insured who have mental health problems.

Commission President Ludgood: Thank you very much.

Commissioner Hudson: Thank you for sharing with us, and this is a problem that we are all going to have to work together to address. We appreciate you giving us this information.

Mr. Schlesinger: Thank y'all for your time.

\_\_\_\_\_

PRESENT RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION OF PROFESSIONAL ACHIEVEMENT/DR. JENNIFER LYN KNIZLEY

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: This morning we want to recognize Dr. Knizley. For anyone who was around during the time when we were in transition at the Mobile County Animal Shelter, and if you know anything at all about that process and how we worked through it to go from where we were to being considered the best animal shelter in the state, Dr. Knizley had a whole lot to do with that. We would like to recognize that this morning.

Commissioner Connie Hudson: Good morning, our resolution is for Dr. Jennifer Lyn Knizley, and it reads:

WHEREAS, Dr. Knizley who has served for the past three (3) years as the veterinarian at the Mobile County Animal Shelter was the first contract Veterinarian in a shelter in the State of Alabama. For more than a decade she has provided health services to animals in both the private and public sector. We take this moment to acknowledge and commend Dr. Knizley for her outstanding, dedication, leadership and commitment to Mobile County; and

WHEREAS, during her tenure with the Mobile County Animal Shelter Dr. Knizley has been instrumental in developing the plan for spay neuter procedures to be performed on all adopted animals. She has been the force behind the development and promotion of several programs to improve the quality of life for animals and residents alike in Mobile County; and

WHEREAS, among her several noteworthy accomplishments are assisting the Mobile County Animal Shelter in the cruelty to animals cases serving as an expert witness for multiple cases throughout the years, establishing vendor's accounts, and earning discounts for the Mobile County Animal Shelter programs. She has devoted much of her time, training, and talents to the Mobile County Animal Shelter which in turn led the Mobile County Animal Shelter to be recognized as one of the premier animal control shelters in the State of Alabama and across the Gulf Coast; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Knizley has earned the respect and gratitude of her colleagues and local leaders, as well as the public at large for her willingness to help others and her adherence to the highest standards of ethical conduct and her steadfast devotion to the betterment of Mobile County;

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED: The Mobile County Commission wishes to commend Dr. Jennifer Knizley on her extraordinary professional achievement on the occasion of her departure as a Veterinarian of the Mobile County Animal Shelter, and by a copy of this resolution, we convey our gratitude. Furthermore, we extend our heartfelt best wishes to her and all her future endeavors.

Dr. Jennifer Lyn Knizley: Thank you very much and I was not prepared for a speech, but I have really enjoyed my time as being the animal shelter's veterinarian in Mobile County. It has been a pure joy to watch it grow. I actually started volunteering at the animal shelter in 2007, so I got to see the transition into the new building. It has been my pleasure. I hope to be still involved on some level as long as the Mobile County Animal Shelter is around.

\_\_\_\_\_

### Environmental Services Director G. William Melton:

Commissioners, you asked that I give you an update on the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) Program two (2) weeks ago. The states of Alabama, Louisiana, Mississippi and Texas will share in the royalties, rents, bonuses, leases, and the other instruments that produce these offshore oil and gas funds. There is a big risk for these coastal states, counties and parishes and there is a lot of opportunity to use this money to protect the coast. The coast is a valuable resource to Alabama and the same for these other states. There is a risk and there is a need to protect our resources in our coasts and it is evident from the number of oil rigs in the Gulf of Mexico. There are more oil rigs in the Gulf of Mexico than in any other body of water around the United States. What I want to do today is to give you a brief background of what the authorized uses are for ongoing projects, what the use of these funds are and a little bit about future planning for the program. As you may recall, the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) funds are from the Outer Continental Shelf oil and gas revenues. These four (4) states and the coastal political subdivisions will share a cap of three hundred seventy-five million dollars (\$375,000,000.00) per year. This federal rule is public law and is published in the Federal Register, it is not the Code of Federal Regulation, but a federal rule. Revenues are administered and collected by the Office of Natural Resources Revenue and the monies that are received on Phase II started in FY17, and we are told by the federal administrators that we may not reach that cap. However, those revenues should come to the County around April 2018. About a year ago, a

federal administrator came and gave us a presentation, and at that presentation, they shared these numbers with us. We saw if the three hundred seventy-five million dollar (\$375,000,000.00) cap was met, the State of Alabama would receive around forty-five million dollars (\$45,000,000.00), Mobile County around six million dollars (\$6,000,000.00), and Baldwin County around five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00), if the cap was met. These numbers are from the Office of Revenue. The authorized uses of these funds are just like the Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) with a slight deviation. The authorized uses include coastal protection in terms of conservation, restoration and hurricane protection. We appreciate what Commissioner Hudson has done in trying to get some clarification on what hurricane protection means. So many problems are bigger than us, and we need some help from the Legislature to keep this money here in Mobile. Another authorized use is mitigation of damage to fish, wildlife, or natural resources and implementation of a federally-approved marine, coastal, or conservation management plan such as the plan of the National Estuary Program (NEP) and watershed management plans that we did in Mobile County. Lastly, there is the mitigation of effect from the Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) activities through the funding of onshore infrastructure projects such as the many things that accommodate the oil rigs out in the gulf. Some of the ongoing projects that the Commission has already approved for the use of these funds include the conservation land management of two hundred forty thousand dollars (\$240,000.00) per year related to the conservation goals on properties that were purchased through the Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP). Those goals include doing prescribed burns to control invasive vegetative species, and some other issues surrounding security of the property. The storm surge monitors that we watched closely during Hurricane Nate, we are receiving funding from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), seventy thousand dollars (\$70,000.00) for the next five (5) years to maintain and operate these storm surge monitors. What is the future plan that we intend with the use of Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) funds? Well the first thing we want to do is, the staff will recommend to the Commission a plan to guide the use of the funds. know we need to be consistent with Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) that authorized uses are consistent with that program, and we must administer it the same way. We will maintain compliance with the Federal Procurement Rule, 2 CFR 200. There are some recommended environmental priorities that we know the Commission has and one of which is stormwater. The quality of all the rain we see every year is definitely a priority and since we are a coastal county, the protection of the coast is a priority, so we will recommend those types of projects that will protect the coast, habitat, and fishery associated with it. There is an unlimited opportunity for

environmental restoration projects that we will recommend as a priority. So these will be some of the things that will guide the planning process and address those priorities of the Commission. Commissioners, if y'all want me to address any questions, I have Eddie Kerr and Tina Sanchez with me today to help me answer them.

**Commission President Merceria Ludgood:** In the Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) we had to go to the state for approval on our projects is that still an interim step or can we decide?

Environmental Services Director Melton: We will not have to go through that process with the state this time. We will administer and develop the plan at the County level, and that is as far as any permission we will need to seek.

Commission President Ludgood: It looks like thirty-four million dollars (\$34,000,000.00) will go to the state, is the state going to spend it in the affected areas, like Mobile and Baldwin Counties?

**Environmental Services Director Melton:** My impression is that it is, however, that is debatable, and it is up to the state.

**Commissioner Jerry L. Carl:** So everyone understands, what is the federal government trying to do now with this money?

Environmental Services Director Melton: We have a number of attempts by the President to terminate this fund.

Commissioner Carl: Right, and this fund is going to go toward paying the national debt if they get their way.

Environmental Services Director Melton: Yes, sir, if the President gets his way we will see this program disappear and used to offset other programs. The risk in the gulf is great, and the needs are great. The fight to keep this funding source locally to assist the coast is also great. We appreciate any effort the Commission does to help us keep this funding locally.

Commissioner Carl: Thank you, Bill.

Commission President Ludgood: Thank you.

Commissioner Connie Hudson: Recently, on the trip that I made to Washington, D.C. to meet with some of the agencies to try to keep this initiative in the forefront with keeping the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) funds coming to the coastal areas; it was my impression in meeting with the Department of Interior, the

Department of Treasury, the Office of Management and Budget that this was not a done deal as far as swooping in and taking this money and putting back into the federal General Fund. I think there is a lot of hope, at least from the conversations I had, we are going to see that money reinstated in the budget or at least a portion of it. I think it is important at this point to keep that conversation open with our Legislature. I know Congressman Byrne has spearheaded an effort on the House side to introduce an amendment that would disallow the funding being taken out of the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) funds and put back into the federal General Budget. I know on the Senate side, our Senator Shelby is working along those same lines. It is not a done deal yet as far as taking that money.

#### Commissioner Carl: Good.

Commissioner Hudson: I have good hope and confidence that in April we are going to see some funding. Now it may not meet the cap that Bill was talking about because right now there is not a lot of confidence among these oil companies and the reliability of those leases. I know during the previous Presidential administration some of those leases were voided so until they have confidence there is going to be a long-term lease agreement that they can work out, some of them are hesitant to enter into leases, so I think they are also working along those lines to make those leases permanent. Have you heard any more on that Bill?

Environmental Services Director Melton: Yes, Commissioner, we are following Louisiana who is out in front with some of those issues with the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act (GOMESA) funds, and they are anticipating about half of the revenue.

Commissioner Hudson: Half of what was projected?

Environmental Services Director Melton: That is
right.

Commissioner Hudson: If that is true for us, if Mobile County was projected to receive six million dollars (\$6,000,000.00) then it will be along the line of three million dollars (\$3,000,000.00) in April.

Environmental Services Director Melton: Yes, ma'am.

Commissioner Hudson: Okay, thank you very much.

Environmental Services Director Melton: Thank you.

Commission President Ludgood: I hope you are right, Commissioner.

Commissioner Hudson: I hope so too, we need it. It is critical to our area; we have the most rainfall of any of the lower forty-eight (48) states in our area. We can get 67 inches to 81 inches per year of rainfall and then the number of storms we get, the tropical storms, hurricanes and how it affects our area. That money is critical to help us to be able to plan and be prepared for hurricanes and stormwater management. It would be a terrible shame if we were to lose that money and not be able to continue with the planning we have done so far.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #1

#### APPROVE CLAIMS

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, the Board approve payment of the following claims and payrolls, and the signing of warrants by the President of the Commission:

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/7/2017	00340729	A T AND T MOBILITY	439.89
11/7/2017	00340730	AL DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAG	1,385.00
	00340731	AL DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAG	800.00
11/7/2017	00340732	ALABAMA POWER CO	258.12
11/7/2017	00340733	ALABAMA POWER CO	40.59
11/7/2017	00340734	ALABAMA POWER CO	142.79
11/7/2017	00340735	ALABAMA POWER CO	273.24
11/7/2017	00340736	ALABAMA POWER CO	48.32
11/7/2017	00340737	ALABAMA POWER CO	144.88
11/7/2017	00340738	ALABAMA POWER CO	113.39
11/7/2017	00340739	ALABAMA POWER CO	607.95
11/7/2017	00340740	AT AND T	111.61
11/7/2017	00340741	ATCHISON FIRM PC	3,855.00
11/7/2017	00340742	AUTOZONE AUTO PARTS	383.41
11/7/2017	00340743	BAMA AUTO PARTS AND INDUSTRIAL	66.90
11/7/2017	00340744	BAMA PEST CONTROL	463.25
11/7/2017	00340745	BAY PAPER CO	71.94
11/7/2017	00340746	BAYSIDE RUBBER AND PRODUCTS IN	622.13
11/7/2017	00340747	BEARD EQUIPMENT CO	3,892.58
11/7/2017	00340748	BLACK BOX NETWORK SERVICES	205.25
11/7/2017	00340749	BLOSSMAN GAS INC	118.66
11/7/2017	00340750	BOB CAT OF MOBILE	116.16
11/7/2017	00340751	BROWN AND KEAHEY	152.12
11/7/2017	00340752	BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS	2,375.49
11/7/2017	00340753	BURK KLEINPETER INC	2,225.28
11/7/2017	00340754	BUSINESS ALABAMA	22.95
11/7/2017	00340755	BWI COMPANIES INC	1,059.04
11/7/2017	00340756	BYRON OWEN COLEMAN	2,400.00

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/7/2017	00340757	C AND S ELECTRIC	4,250.35
11/7/2017	00340758	CAMPER CITY	2,847.50
11/7/2017	00340759	CAPITAL TRAILER AND EQUIPMENT	995.67
		SLACK SR, DARREN JAY AND PATRI	
11/7/2017			
11/7/2017	00340762	CDW GOVERNMENT INC	142.93
11/7/2017	00340763	CHADS LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT INC	95.00
11/7/2017	00340764	CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY	2,801.50
11/7/2017	00340765	CLEARWATER SOLUTIONS LLC	1,437.50
11/7/2017	00340766	COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY UNI	111.00
11/7/2017	00340767	CLEARWATER SOLUTIONS LLC COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY UNI CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS INC COPY PRODUCTS COMPANY	7.77
11/7/2017	00340768	COPY PRODUCTS COMPANY	170.00
		CORNERSTONE DETENTION PRODUCTS	
11/7/2017	00340770	COTTON STATE	500.00
11/7/2017	00340771	COVINGTON AND SONS LLC	289.00
11/7/2017	00340772	COWIN EQUIPMENT CO INC	2,039.53
		CPC SOFTWARE SOLUTIONS	429.20
		CRAIGS FIREARMS SUPPLY INC	6,083.30
		CUSTOM DESIGNS	40.00
11/7/2017	00340776	DISH	77.00
11/7/2017	00340777	DISH	63.55
11/7/2017	00340778	DIVERSIFIED COMPANIES LLC	539.65
11/7/2017	00340779	E RING INC	390,521.16
11/7/2017	00340780	EVANS	616.14
11/7/2017	00340781	FAISON, LARRY D	531.08
		JOSEPH ALLEN FERGUSON JR	75.00
11/7/2017	00340783	FLEET SAFETY EQUIPMENT INC	2,524.00
11/7/2017	00340784	FLEETPRIDE INC	396.20
11/7/2017	00340785	FORESTRY SUPPLIERS INC	321.63
		FOUR IMPRINT	575.14
		G G PORTABLES INC	155.74
		GLOBALSTAR USA	160.45
		GULF COAST RIGHT OF WAY SERVIC	
		HABITAT FOR HUMANITY	47,186.45
		HAMPTON INN AND SUITES	381.67
		HAMPTON INN AND SUITES	381.67
		HAMPTON INN AND SUITES	381.67
		HENRY SCHEIN ANIMAL HEALTH	
		HIGH SEAS DESIGN HOUSE LLC	14,995.35
		HOBART SERVICE	3,438.77
11/7/2017			66.00
11/7/2017		INTEGRA WATER LLC	5,523.96
11/7/2017			21,092.85
11/7/2017		JOFFE, BENJAMIN LADD SUPPLY CO INC	290.93 314.15
		LIFELINES COUNSELING SERVICES	
		LIVING WORD CHURCH	700.00
11/7/2017		LOWES	423.49
11/7/2017		LYNN E YONGE MD	2,667.00
11/7/2017		MCDONALD, KATHY	89.88
		MOBILE AREA INTERFAITH CONFERE	
		MOTOR CARRIER CONSULTANTS INC	
		NEEL SCHAFFER INC	10,200.00
		OFFICE DEPOT	2,939.74

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/7/2017	00340811	PROBATE COURT	1,070.50
11/7/2017	00340812	S AND O ENTERPRISES	840.00
11/7/2017	00340813	SANDERSON, KIM	384.85
11/7/2017	00340814	SHABAZZ, AHMAAD H	3,000.00
11/7/2017	00340815	SPIRE	3,111.46
11/7/2017	00340816	SURETY LAND TITLE INC	5,386.20
11/7/2017	00340817	T S WALL AND SONS	1,237.09
11/7/2017	00340818	TALLASSEE AUTOMOTIVE INC	29,727.00
11/7/2017	00340819	TE LLC	165.42
11/7/2017	00340820	TEST CALIBRATION CO INC	1,081.34
11/7/2017	00340821	THOMPSON ENGINEERING	400.00
11/7/2017	00340822	TOOMEY EQUIPMENT CO INC	399.60
11/7/2017	00340823	TRACTOR AND EQUIPMENT CO	3,821.15
11/7/2017	00340824	TRANE USA INC	712.00
11/7/2017	00340825	TRINITY SERVICES GROUP INC	23,080.39
11/7/2017	00340826	TRUCK EQUIPMENT SALES INC	0.93
11/7/2017	00340827	TRUCK PRO INC	45.48
11/7/2017	00340828	TSA INC	15,898.00
11/7/2017	00340829	TURNER SUPPLY CO	363.84
11/7/2017	00340830	U J CHEVROLET CO INC	207.46
11/7/2017	00340831	ULINE	95.45
11/7/2017	00340832	UNITED LABORATORIES	586.62
11/7/2017	00340833	VOLKERT INC	1,599.05
11/7/2017	00340834	VOLKERT INC	6,228.79
11/7/2017	00340835	VOLKERT INC	7,844.26
11/7/2017	00340836	VULCAN MATERIALS CO	28,605.11
11/7/2017	00340837	VULCAN SIGNS	1,895.00
11/7/2017	00340838	WALCO INC	523.80
11/7/2017	00340839	WARD INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS OF A	6,409.15
11/7/2017	00340840	WESCO GAS AND WELDING SUPPLY I	363.52
11/7/2017	00340841	WILSON DISMUKES INC	94.44
11/7/2017	00340842	WINSUPPLY OF DAPHNE AL	151.80
11/9/2017	00340843	A T AND T MOBILITY	79.98
11/9/2017	00340844	ACP ASIM SERVICES	388.00
11/9/2017	00340845	ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF COURT	8,965.66
11/9/2017	00340846	ADVANCE AUTO PARTS	174.21
11/9/2017	00340847	AED SUPERSTORE	6,374.25
11/9/2017	00340848	ALABAMA POWER CO	89,175.94
11/9/2017	00340849	ALABAMA POWER CO	5,347.94
11/9/2017	00340850	ALABAMA POWER CO	473.07
11/9/2017	00340851	ALABAMA POWER CO	298.27
11/9/2017	00340852	ALABAMA POWER CO	1,809.75
11/9/2017	00340853	ALABAMA POWER CO	1,928.88
11/9/2017	00340854	ALABAMA POWER CO	330.03
11/9/2017	00340855	ALABAMA POWER CO	1,828.37
11/9/2017		ALABAMA POWER CO	436.77
11/9/2017		ALABAMA POWER CO	53.42
11/9/2017	00340858	ALABAMA POWER CO	496.20
11/9/2017	00340859	ALABAMA SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED	300.00
11/9/2017	00340860	ALL OVER JANITORIAL SERVICES I	375.00
11/9/2017	00340861	AMERICAN FOODS INC	271.10
11/9/2017	00340862	AMERICAN MESSAGING SERVICES LL	52.69
11/9/2017		AMERICAN RED CROSS	54.00
11/9/2017	00340864	ANDREWS HARDWARE CO INC	45.99

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/9/2017	00340865	AUBURN UNIVERSITY	225.00
11/9/2017	00340866	B AND B APPLIANCE PARTS	1,388.07
11/9/2017	00340867	B B AND T FINANCIAL	4,514.89
11/9/2017	00340868	BAMA PEST CONTROL	54.50
11/9/2017	00340869	BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST	6,050.00
11/9/2017	00340870	BAYOU FASTENERS AND SUPPLY INC	147.20
11/9/2017	00340871	BEARD EQUIPMENT CO	583.04
11/9/2017	00340872	BRIGGS EQUIPMENT INC	880.36
11/9/2017	00340873	BROWN AND KEAHEY	149.24
11/9/2017	00340874	BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS	833.96
11/9/2017	00340875	CAMELLIA TROPHY SHOP	297.00
11/9/2017	00340876	CARTER, ESSCELIA	297.22
11/9/2017	00340877	CDW GOVERNMENT INC	280.06
11/9/2017	00340878	CENTURYLINK	72.33
11/9/2017	00340879	CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY	116.00
11/9/2017	00340880	CLOWER ELECTRIC SUPPLY	903.14
, - , -	00340881	COAST SAFE AND LOCK	150.00
11/9/2017	00340882	COMCAST CABLE	12.68
11/9/2017	00340883	COMCAST CABLE	6.34
11/9/2017	00340884	COMCAST CABLE	118.92
11/9/2017	00340885	COMFORT TOUCH TRANSPORT LLC	3,510.00
11/9/2017	00340886	CUSTOM DESIGNS	25.00
11/9/2017	00340887	CVS PHARMACY	17.88
11/9/2017	00340888	DADE PAPER AND BAG CO	10,266.79
11/9/2017	00340889	DAVENPORTE, PHILLIP	173.88
11/9/2017	00340890	DAVIS MOTOR SUPPLY CO INC	1,278.83
11/9/2017	00340891	DAVIS PHD, JOHN W	495.00
11/9/2017	00340892	DEES PAPER CO INC	1,129.18
11/9/2017	00340893	DEPT OF LABOR	18,644.57
	00340894	DEPT OF MENTAL HEALTH AND MENT	11,276.75
11/9/2017	00340895	DISCYALATOR LLC	540.00
11/9/2017	00340896	ELBERTA PUMP REPAIR INC	643.50
11/9/2017	00340897	ENVIROCHEM INC	263.60
11/9/2017	00340898	FIREHOUSE SALES AND SERVICE	4,040.00
11/9/2017	00340899	FRANKLIN COVEY PRODUCTS LLC	34.15
11/9/2017	00340900	G AND K SERVICES	777.29
11/9/2017	00340901	GLOBAL EQUIPMENT CO INC	203.80
11/9/2017	00340902	GRAESTONE AGGREGATES LLC	5,882.25
11/9/2017	00340903	GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY	718.44
11/9/2017	00340904	GULF CITY BODY AND TRAILER WOR	149.67
11/9/2017	00340905	GWINS STATIONERY	36.39
11/9/2017	00340906	HAMPTON INN AND SUITES	381.67
11/9/2017	00340907	HAMPTON INN AND SUITES	381.67
11/9/2017	00340908	HCL CONTRACTING LLC	32,321.97
11/9/2017	00340909	HOUSING FIRST INC	1,982.85
11/9/2017	00340910	HYDRAULIC REPAIR SVC	1,012.49
11/9/2017	00340911	I-CON SYSTEMS INC.	5,495.54
11/9/2017	00340912	INEX CORP	117.85
11/9/2017	00340913	INTEGRA WATER LLC	392.63
11/9/2017	00340914	JBT POWER	59.07
11/9/2017	00340915	JOHN G WALTON CONSTRUCTION CO	101,190.91
11/9/2017	00340916	JOHN M WARREN INC	1,136.00
11/9/2017	00340917	JOHNSON CONTROLS INC	500.00
11/9/2017	00340918	JONES MCLEOD INC	115.60

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/9/2017	00340919	K AND K SYSTEMS INC	1,900.00
11/9/2017	00340920	KEMPER INDUSTRIES INC	275.00
11/9/2017	00340921	KENWORTH OF MOBILE INC	393.86
11/9/2017	00340922	KITTRELL AUTO GLASS LLC	271.50
11/9/2017	00340923	L AND L SAW LAWN AND EQUIPMENT	121.83
11/9/2017	00340924	LABEAUD, JAMILAH	284.50
11/9/2017	00340925	LEMOYNE WATER SYSTEM INC	642.42
11/9/2017	00340926	LENNOX INDUSTRIES INC	279.26
11/9/2017	00340927	LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER	99.08
11/9/2017	00340928	LOWES	533.20
11/9/2017	00340929	M AND A STAMP CO	58.00
11/9/2017	00340930	M D BELL CO INC	400.00
11/9/2017	00340931	MADER BEARING SUPPLY CO	286.46
11/9/2017	00340932	MCCARROLL, DEBRA	288.08
11/9/2017	00340933	MCCONNELL AUTOMOTIVE GROUP	1,413.55
11/9/2017	00340934	MCEWEN LUMBER CO	102.40
	00340935	MCGRIFF TIRE CO	17,305.05
11/9/2017	00340936	MEDICAL SUPPLIES DEPOT INC	2,853.50
11/9/2017	00340937	MIKE HOFFMANS EQUIPMENT SERVIC	1,790.26
11/9/2017	00340938	MIMS, SHERRI	150.00
11/9/2017	00340939	MINGLEDORFFS INC	255.20
11/9/2017	00340940	MINNESOTA MINING AND MANUFACTU	7,360.00
11/9/2017	00340941	MOBILE ALABAMA BOWL INC	100,000.00
11/9/2017	00340942	MOBILE AREA WATER AND SEWER SY	921.68
11/9/2017	00340943	MOBILE BAR ASSOCIATION	66.00
11/9/2017	00340944	MOBILE CASH AND CARRY	154.20
11/9/2017	00340945	MOBILE MACHINE AND HYDRAULICS	701.74
11/9/2017	00340946	MOBILE MECHANICAL	850.50
	00340947	MOBILE PAINT MANUFACTURING CO	595.00
	00340948	MOBILE PRINTING CO	120.00
11/9/2017	00340949	MOBILE UNITED	5,500.00
11/9/2017	00340950	MULLINAX FORD OF MOBILE LLC	223.62
11/9/2017	00340951		3,279.45
	00340952		23,066.57
	00340953		280.00
, - , -	00340954	NATIONAL PEN CORPORATION NAVIGATION ELECTRONICS INC	1,785.00 805.00
11/9/2017	00340955	NUDRAULIX INC	925.22
11/9/2017	00340957	O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC	10.99
11/9/2017	00340957	O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC	151.48
11/9/2017	00340959	OEC BUSINESS SUPPLIES	994.38
11/9/2017	00340960	OLENSKY BROTHERS OFFICE PRODUC	75.10
11/9/2017	00340961	P AND G MACHINE SUPPLY	136.66
	00340962	PACER SERVICE CENTER	21.00
11/9/2017	00340963	PATS INDUSTRIAL AND AUTO SUPPL	116.01
11/9/2017	00340964	PIERCE LEDYARD PC	95.00
11/9/2017	00340965	PINNACLE NETWORX LLC	2,250.64
11/9/2017	00340966	PIONEER MANUFACTURING CO	924.01
11/9/2017	00340967	PORT CITY TRAILERS	105.90
11/9/2017	00340968	POSTMASTER	112.00
	00310360		735.00
	00340970		45.00
	00310370		339.00
11/9/2017	00340972		385.00
			232.00

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/9/2017	00340973	REPUBLIC SERVICES 986	1,279.06
11/9/2017	00340974	RETIF OIL AND FUEL LLC	39,029.77
11/9/2017	00340975	RETIRED AND SENIOR VOLUNTEER P	4,791.00
11/9/2017	00340976	RHODES MECHANICAL LLC	2,775.00
11/9/2017	00340977	ROBBINS COLLISION PARTS	812.00
11/9/2017	00340978	SEMMES COMMUNITY CENTER	475.00
11/9/2017	00340979	SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO	431.40
11/9/2017	00340980	SHRED IT US HOLD CO INC	89.68
11/9/2017	00340981	SICKLE CELL DISEASE ASSN OF AM	3,750.00
11/9/2017	00340982	SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY LLC	67.80
11/9/2017	00340983	SNAP ON TOOLS	1,391.24
11/9/2017	00340984	SOUTH ALABAMA UTILITIES	232.04
11/9/2017	00340985	SOUTHERN APPEAL LANDSCAPE MANA	689.75
	00340986	SOUTHERN DISTRIBUTORS	3,162.67
11/9/2017	00340987	SOUTHERN LIGHT LLC	3,600.00
	00340988	SOUTHERN PIPE AND SUPPLY CO IN	1.98
	00340989	SPECTRONICS INC	500.73
11/9/2017	00340990	SPENCERS ENTERPRISE INC	7,300.00
11/9/2017	00340991	SPRING HILL ANIMAL CLINIC LLC	755.00
11/9/2017	00340992	SPRINGDALE TRAVEL	2,998.80
11/9/2017	00340993	SPROT PRINTER RIBBONS LLC	1,701.20
11/9/2017	00340994	SRD ELECTRICAL SERVICES LLC	90.00
11/9/2017	00340995	STALLWORTH TRIM SHOP	450.00
11/9/2017	00340996	STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO INC	208.74
11/9/2017	00340997	SUPPLYWORKS	47.22
11/9/2017	00340998	SUPREME MEDICAL	936.50
11/9/2017	00340999	T S WALL AND SONS	252.00
11/9/2017	00341000	TAYLOR, PARRISHA	374.60
	00341001	TELETRAC NAVMAN US LTD	766.57
	00341002	TESSCO INC THREADED FASTENER INC	1,054.54
11/9/2017 11/9/2017	00341003	TRACTOR AND EQUIPMENT CO	224.85 1,920.40
11/9/2017	00341004	TRIPLE POINT INDUSTRIES LLC	984.40
11/9/2017	00341005	TRUCK PRO INC	126.23
11/9/2017	00341000	TSA INC	536.00
11/9/2017	00341007	VOLKERT INC	745.80
11/9/2017	00341009	WARD INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS OF A	2,673.72
11/9/2017	00341010	WATCH SYSTEMS LLC	177.59
11/9/2017	00341011	WILHELM, DAWN WILSON	1,310.66
11/9/2017	00341012	WILSON DISMUKES INC	473.00
11/9/2017	00341013	WINSUPPLY OF DAPHNE AL	216.80
11/9/2017	00341014	WITTICHEN SUPPLY CO INC	425.04
	00341015	YELLOWBOOK-CPE.COM	550.00
11/17/2017		A AND M PORTABLES INC	150.00
11/17/2017		ADAMS AND REESE LLP	10,242.40
11/17/2017	00341018	ADVANCE AUTO PARTS	668.03
11/17/2017	00341019	AGRI AFC LLC	103.00
11/17/2017		ALABAMA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION	20,415.00
11/17/2017	00341021	ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR	100.00
11/17/2017	00341022	ALABAMA FLAG AND BANNER INC	166.00
11/17/2017	00341023	ALABAMA INTERACTIVE LLC	711.75
11/17/2017	00341024	ALABAMA MEDIA GROUP	800.47
11/17/2017	00341025	ALABAMA MEDIA GROUP	440.30
11/17/2017	00341026	ALABAMA MEDIA GROUP	327.25

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/17/2017	00341027	ALABAMA PIPE AND SUPPLY CO INC	293.60
11/17/2017	00341028	ALABAMA POWER CO	5,763.00
11/17/2017	00341029	ALABAMA POWER CO	1,851.24
11/17/2017	00341030	ALABAMA POWER CO	25.83
11/17/2017	00341031	ALABAMA POWER CO	51.90
11/17/2017	00341032	ALABAMA POWER CO	1,426.90
11/17/2017	00341033	ALABAMA POWER CO	455.40
11/17/2017	00341034	ALABAMA POWER CO	84.85
11/17/2017	00341035	ALABAMA POWER CO	50.42
11/17/2017	00341036	ALABAMA POWER CO	7,639.94
11/17/2017	00341037	ALABAMA POWER CO	9,942.81
11/17/2017	00341038	ALABAMA POWER CO	289.93
11/17/2017	00341039	ALABAMA SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONA	205.00
11/17/2017	00341040	ALABAMA SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONA	185.00
11/17/2017	00341041	ALABAMA SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONA	110.00
11/17/2017	00341042	ALABAMA TAX ADMINISTRATORS ASS	1,125.00
11/17/2017	00341043	ALACOURT COM	87.00
11/17/2017	00341044	ALEXANDER HARDWARE	73.93
11/17/2017	00341045	ALLIED ELECTRONICS INC	24.71
11/17/2017	00341046	ALTAPOINTE HEALTH SYSTEMS INC	5,833.33
11/17/2017	00341047	AMERICAN ELECTRONIC SUPPLY CO	5,684.80
11/17/2017	00341048	AMERICAN FOODS INC	6,149.47
11/17/2017	00341049	AMERICAN TENNIS AND EDUCATION	3,500.00
11/17/2017	00341050	ANDREWS HARDWARE CO INC	96.10
11/17/2017	00341051	ANIMAL CARE OF MOBILE COUNTY	385.00
11/17/2017	00341052	ARCHITECTS GROUP INC, THE	12,986.29
11/17/2017	00341053	ARMSTRONG ELECTRIC CO INC	190.00
11/17/2017	00341054	ASFPM	160.00
11/17/2017	00341055	AT AND T	96.94
11/17/2017	00341056		6,405.78
11/17/2017	00341057	AUTOMOTIVE PAINTERS SUPPLY	318.39
11/17/2017	00341058	AUTOZONE AUTO PARTS	53.78
11/17/2017	00341059		6.86
11/17/2017	00341060		6,216.50
11/17/2017	00341061	B B AND T	22,893.73
11/17/2017	00341062		179.08
11/17/2017	00341063	B B AND T FINANCIAL	546.57
11/17/2017	00341064	B B AND T FINANCIAL	2,372.39
11/17/2017	00341065	B B AND T FINANCIAL	190.18
11/17/2017 11/17/2017	00341066 00341067	B B AND T FINANCIAL BAMA AUTO PARTS AND INDUSTRIAL	888.47
			4,239.12
11/17/2017 11/17/2017	00341068 00341069		163.50 834.00
11/17/2017	00341009		6,517.15
11/17/2017	00341070	BAY PAPER CO	1,348.46
11/17/2017	00341071	BAYOU CONCRETE LLC	732.00
11/17/2017	00341072	BEARD EQUIPMENT CO	1,116.23
11/17/2017	00341073	BELL AND CO	586.50
11/17/2017	00341074	BELNICK RETAIL LLC	700.93
11/17/2017	00341075	BENTLEY SYSTEMS INC	733.00
11/17/2017	00341070	BERNEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS	22.82
11/17/2017	00341078	BEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAGE AC	1,229.95
11/17/2017	00341079		241.18
11/17/2017	00341080	BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF ALAB	34,243.61
	•	-	,

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/17/2017	00341081	BOB BARKER CO INC	23,681.07
11/17/2017	00341082	BORDEN DAIRY COMPANY	1,053.80
11/17/2017	00341083	BRANDYBURG FIRM PC, THE	539.41
11/17/2017	00341084	BROWN, SHIRLEY SHORT	324.88
11/17/2017	00341085	BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS	1,017.30
11/17/2017	00341086	BURNETT, FINISE HOWARD	51.36
11/17/2017	00341087	CALL NEWS	35.00
11/17/2017	00341088	CAMP RAP A HOPE FOUNDATION INC	750.00
11/17/2017	00341089	CAPITAL TRAILER AND EQUIPMENT	260.00
11/17/2017	00341090	CDW GOVERNMENT INC	11,472.74
11/17/2017	00341091	CENTRAL TIME CLOCK, INC.	149.00
11/17/2017	00341092	CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY	5,594.70
11/17/2017	00341093	CLOWER ELECTRIC SUPPLY	14.10
11/17/2017	00341094	COAST SAFE AND LOCK	622.87
11/17/2017	00341095	COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY UNI	92.75
11/17/2017	00341096	COMCAST CABLE	12.80
11/17/2017	00341097	COMCAST CABLE	6.34
11/17/2017	00341098	CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS INC	693.00
11/17/2017	00341099	COPY PRODUCTS COMPANY	218.34
11/17/2017	00341100	CORNERSTONE DETENTION PRODUCTS	4,679.50
11/17/2017	00341101	COVINGTON AND SONS LLC	156.00
11/17/2017	00341102	COWIN EQUIPMENT CO INC	2,601.87
11/17/2017	00341103	CUSTOM DESIGNS	60.00
11/17/2017	00341104	CWS GROUP INC	4,840.00
11/17/2017	00341105	DAUPHIN ISLAND WATER SEWER AND	20.98
11/17/2017	00341106	DAVID W HARTERY	355.00
11/17/2017	00341107	DEES PAPER CO INC	1,183.98
11/17/2017	00341108	DELCHAMPS, VIRGINIA	335.46
11/17/2017	00341109	DIAMOND, ROXANNE I	54.38
11/17/2017	00341110	DIGITAL BUYER	555.00
11/17/2017	00341111	DIVERSIFIED COMPANIES LLC	5,990.09
11/17/2017	00341112	DRONE WORLD, LLC.	299.00
11/17/2017	00341113		40.30
11/17/2017	00341114		200.00
11/17/2017	00341115	ESRI	121,899.00
11/17/2017	00341116	FASTENAL CO INDUSTRIAL AND CON	143.76
11/17/2017	00341117	FEDERAL EXPRESS CORP	93.42
11/17/2017	00341118	FIELDS, JOSEPH ALAN	217.50
11/17/2017	00341119	FIREHOUSE SALES AND SERVICE	1,958.00
11/17/2017	00341120	FLEET SAFETY EQUIPMENT INC	5,331.00
11/17/2017	00341121	FORD LUMBER CO	399.75
11/17/2017	00341122	FOREMAN, ETSIE	1,592.00
11/17/2017	00341123	FRANK TURNER CONSTRUCTION CO I	679,665.39
11/17/2017	00341124		125.00
11/17/2017	00341125	G AND K SERVICES	47.16
11/17/2017	00341126	GENERAL FUND	38,174.92
11/17/2017	00341127		109.00
11/17/2017	00341128	GLOBAL INDUSTRIES INC	482.16
11/17/2017	00341129		8,000.00
11/17/2017	00341130		847.60
11/17/2017	00341131		22,785.93
11/17/2017	00341132		116.10
11/17/2017	00341133		26,398.53
11/17/2017	00341134	HEALTH INSURANCE ACCOUNT	897.48

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/17/2017	00341135	HEART OF DIXIE VETERINARY CLIN	765.20
11/17/2017	00341136	HEROMAN SERVICES PLANT CO LLC	1,249.50
11/17/2017	00341137	ICE PLANT INC	38.50
11/17/2017	00341138	INFORMATION TRANSPORT SOLUTION	36,810.00
11/17/2017	00341139	INTEGRITY INVESTIGATIONS LLC	55.00
11/17/2017	00341140	INTERIOR CONCEPTS	3,700.00
11/17/2017	00341141	IRBY OVERTON VETERINARY HOSPIT	1,275.00
11/17/2017	00341142	JOHN G WALTON CONSTRUCTION CO	108,494.76
11/17/2017	00341143	JOHN M WARREN INC	114.00
11/17/2017	00341144	KEGLEY II, BRYAN	148.26
11/17/2017	00341145	KENTWOOD SPRING WATER CO	323.01
11/17/2017	00341146	KENWORTH OF MOBILE INC	630.56
11/17/2017			3,305.00
11/17/2017		LADSCO INC	686.00
11/17/2017			3,200.00
11/17/2017			196.14
11/17/2017		LIKE NU PRODUCTS	45.00
11/17/2017		LITTLETON, DENISE I	2,207.64
11/17/2017		LOVE JOYCE YORK	1,695.00
11/17/2017		LOWES	111.00
11/17/2017			455.00
11/17/2017			377.06
11/17/2017			95.00
11/17/2017		MARSTON, CHANDLER	351.66
11/17/2017		MARTIN, DARREN	548.78
11/17/2017		MCCONNELL AUTOMOTIVE GROUP	792.84
11/17/2017		MCCOVERY JR, STEFFON	420.50
11/17/2017		MCCOVERY, STEFFON D	302.10
11/17/2017		MCCRORY AND WILLIAMS	6,346.69
11/17/2017 11/17/2017		MCDERMOTT, EDWARD B MCEWEN LUMBER CO	50.00 344.60
11/17/2017	00341165	MCGRIFF TIRE CO	8,032.10
11/17/2017		MCMASTER CARR SUPPLY CO	306.12
11/17/2017		MEDICAL SUPPLIES DEPOT INC	283.50
11/17/2017			1,200.00
11/17/2017		MILLER, ROBIN	357.62
11/17/2017		MOBILE BAR ASSN LAW LIBRARY	15,000.00
11/17/2017	00341172	SOUTH ALABAMA BOTANICAL	1,000.00
11/17/2017	00341173	MOBILE CASH AND CARRY	226.00
11/17/2017		MOBILE CO FOSTER GRANDPARENT P	18,371.92
11/17/2017		MOBILE COUNTY SHERIFFS MOUNTED	2,137.50
11/17/2017		MOBILE COUNTY TRAINING SCHOOL	1,500.00
11/17/2017	00341177	MOBILE PRINTING CO	1,385.00
11/17/2017	00341178	MONTGOMERY ADVERTISER	546.84
11/17/2017	00341179	MONTGOMERY TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS	10,204.38
11/17/2017	00341180	MORROWS CONTRACTING INC	637.00
11/17/2017	00341181	MOTOR CARRIER CONSULTANTS INC	935.00
11/17/2017	00341182	MT VERNON LIBRARY	1,897.50
11/17/2017	00341183	MULLINAX FORD OF MOBILE LLC	3,755.11
11/17/2017	00341184	NAPHCARE INC	2,260.89
11/17/2017	00341185	NEAL'S ELECTRONICS	75.00
11/17/2017	00341186	NUDRAULIX INC	32.72
11/17/2017	00341187	O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC	858.11
11/17/2017	00341188	OEC BUSINESS SUPPLIES	3,025.42

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/17/2017	00341189	OFFICE DEPOT	3,510.03
11/17/2017	00341190	OFFICE SOLUTIONS AND INNOVATIO	254.85
11/17/2017	00341191	OLENSKY BROTHERS OFFICE PRODUC	87.18
11/17/2017	00341192	PAFENBACH, JOHN F	207.38
11/17/2017	00341193	PATS INDUSTRIAL AND AUTO SUPPL	1,446.57
11/17/2017	00341194	PCMG INC	1,081.92
11/17/2017	00341195	PHILLIPS FEED COMPANY INC	270.00
11/17/2017	00341196	PPM CONSULTANTS INC	1,913.31
11/17/2017	00341197	PRICHARD PUBLIC LIBRARY	27,938.75
11/17/2017	00341198	PRINTING PLUS	235.00
11/17/2017	00341199	PUBLIC BUILDINGS ROADS AND BRI	541.70
11/17/2017		REGIONS BANK	3,978.61
11/17/2017	00341201	REYNOLDS ENTERPRISES LLC	5,599.04
11/17/2017	00341202	RIVERSIDE BAPTIST CHURCH	175.00
11/17/2017	00341203	RON BUSH INC	1,238.25
11/17/2017		ROSTEN AND ASSOCIATES	2,692.30
11/17/2017		ROWLAND, ALISHA	180.32
11/17/2017		SAFIN, MELISSA	50.00
11/17/2017		SALVATION ARMY	3,122.00
11/17/2017		SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM OF MO	11,046.80
11/17/2017		SENTRY SECURITY FASTENERS INC	318.20
11/17/2017		SERENITY GROUP	6,230.00
11/17/2017		SHERIFFS FUND	3,681.35
11/17/2017		SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP	328.27
11/17/2017		SITE ONE ON THE INTERNET INC	275.00
11/17/2017		SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY LLC	44.50
11/17/2017		SNAP ON TOOLS	3,313.40
11/17/2017		SOUTH ALABAMA REGIONAL PLANNIN	111,051.00
11/17/2017		SOUTHERN DISTRIBUTORS	2,220.18
11/17/2017		SOUTHERN LAND DEVELOPMENT SPENCERS ENTERPRISE INC	45,142.75
			800.00
11/17/2017 11/17/2017		SPIRE SPROT PRINTER RIBBONS LLC	109.54 2,018.20
11/17/2017		ST ELMO FEED AND SEED INC	224.90
11/17/2017		STALLWORTH, CHARMAINE	279.13
11/17/2017		STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO INC	323.00
11/17/2017		STANDARD EQUITMENT CO THE STANLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY SO	57.12
11/17/2017		STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE	2,022.37
		STUART C IRBY CO	623.86
11/17/2017		T S WALL AND SONS	171.60
11/17/2017		TAITE, KRYSTAL S	174.00
11/17/2017		TAX MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES INC	15,200.00
11/17/2017		TAYLOR, YOLANDA	11.61
11/17/2017		TE LLC	232.31
11/17/2017		THAMES BATRE	300.00
11/17/2017		THAMES BATRE	175.00
11/17/2017		THREADED FASTENER INC	94.70
11/17/2017	00341236	TIME KEEPING SYSTEMS INC	972.51
11/17/2017	00341237	TOM BARROW CO	2,550.00
11/17/2017	00341238	TRANE USA INC	643.75
11/17/2017	00341239	TRANSMISSION MAGICIANS	3,480.00
11/17/2017	00341240	TRINITY SERVICES GROUP INC	45,607.63
11/17/2017	00341241	TRUCK PRO INC	52.05
11/17/2017	00341242	TYRRELL, PAT	340.93

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/17/2017	00341243	U J CHEVROLET CO INC	129.00
11/17/2017	00341244	ULINE	120.14
11/17/2017	00341245	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE	84.85
11/17/2017	00341246	UNITED RENTALS	157.60
11/17/2017	00341247	UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA	245.00
11/17/2017	00341248	UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH ALABAMA	1,213.80
11/17/2017	00341249	VAN SCOYOC ASSOCIATES	5,010.08
11/17/2017	00341250	VITAL RECORDS CONTROL OF AL LL	924.00
11/17/2017	00341251	VOLKERT INC	91,940.27
11/17/2017	00341252	VORPAHL, JAMES	236.72
11/17/2017	00341253	VULCAN MATERIALS CO	7,942.21
11/17/2017	00341254	VULCAN SIGNS	6,250.00
11/17/2017	00341255	WALCO INC	3,952.00
11/17/2017	00341256	WALTERS CONTROL INC	391.71
11/17/2017	00341257	WARD INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS OF A	1,716.16
11/17/2017	00341258	WASTE MANAGEMENT INC	184.59
11/17/2017	00341259	WAYLON HOWELL	950.00
11/17/2017	00341260	WEAVER AND SONS INC, HOSEA O	24,410.59
11/17/2017	00341261	WILHELM, DAWN WILSON	177.62
11/17/2017	00341262	WINSUPPLY OF DAPHNE AL	5,930.60
11/17/2017	00341263	XEROX CORP	4,675.80
11/17/2017	00341264	YOUNG, CHINNITA	140.54
11/21/2017	00341265	AARON OIL CO INC	90.00
11/21/2017	00341266	ADOL WC FUND	6,340.00
11/21/2017	00341267	ADVANCE AUTO PARTS	488.02
11/21/2017	00341268	AIRGAS USA LLC	488.47
11/21/2017	00341269	ALABAMA DEPT OF REVENUE	505.69
11/21/2017	00341270		825.19
11/21/2017	00341271		809.74
11/21/2017	00341272		232.88
11/21/2017		ALABAMA POWER CO	15,086.44
11/21/2017	00341274		72.04
11/21/2017	00341275		6,955.89
11/21/2017	00341276		10,149.90
11/21/2017		ALABAMA PROBATE JUDGES ASSOCIA	500.00
11/21/2017	00341278		140.00
11/21/2017	00341279		110.21
11/21/2017 11/21/2017	00341280 00341281	AMERICAN TRAFFIC SAFETY MATERI ANDREWS HARDWARE CO INC	589.00 53.89
11/21/2017		ATCHISON FIRM PC	
11/21/2017	00341282 00341283	AUBURN UNIVERSITY	750.00 825.00
11/21/2017	00341283		1,113.70
11/21/2017		AVERY, MICHAEL T	22.36
11/21/2017	00341286	BALDWIN COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE	3,432.08
11/21/2017	00341287	BAMA AUTO PARTS AND INDUSTRIAL	103.32
11/21/2017	00341287	BAMA PEST CONTROL	185.30
11/21/2017	00311200	BATTERY PRO PLUS	654.00
11/21/2017	00341209	BAYOU FASTENERS AND SUPPLY INC	58.06
11/21/2017	00341290	BAYSIDE RUBBER AND PRODUCTS IN	266.24
11/21/2017	00341292		68.12
11/21/2017	00311292		11,033.88
11/21/2017	00311293		2,006.71
11/21/2017	00341295		441.05
11/21/2017	00341296		402.38
	- *		

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/21/2017	00341297	BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS	2,860.08
11/21/2017	00341298	BURK KLEINPETER INC	18,218.45
11/21/2017	00341299	CAMELLIA TROPHY SHOP	97.30
11/21/2017	00341300	CITY OF BAYOU LA BATRE	312.32
11/21/2017	00341301	CITY OF CHICKASAW BOARD OF EDU	205.61
11/21/2017	00341302	CITY OF FOLEY	1,027.86
11/21/2017	00341303	CITY OF JACKSON	1,485.28
11/21/2017	00341304	CITY OF LINDEN	1,059.85
11/21/2017	00341305	CITY OF MOBILE	11,621.76
11/21/2017	00341306	CITY OF MOBILE	163.05
11/21/2017	00341307	CITY OF SARALAND	978.65
11/21/2017	00341308	CLUTCH AND POWERTRAIN	2,335.21
11/21/2017	00341309	COAST SAFE AND LOCK	22.19
11/21/2017	00341310	COASTAL POLICE SUPPLY	1,102.58
11/21/2017	00341311	COLLINS, JOY	180.00
11/21/2017	00341312	COMCAST CABLE	239.85
11/21/2017	00341313	COMCAST CABLE	19.11
11/21/2017	00341314	COMCAST CABLE	419.46
11/21/2017	00341315	COVINGTON AND SONS LLC	219.00
11/21/2017			938.50
11/21/2017	00341317	CSX TRANSPORTATION	148.00
11/21/2017		CULLIGAN WATER OF MOBILE	292.37
11/21/2017		CUSTOM DESIGNS	1,125.00
11/21/2017		DADE PAPER AND BAG CO	3,274.78
11/21/2017		DAVIS MOTOR SUPPLY CO INC	600.64
11/21/2017	00341322	DAVISON FUELS INC	3,764.47
11/21/2017	00341323	DEES PAPER CO INC	4,326.26
11/21/2017		DEMOPOLIS POLICE DEPARTMENT	1,575.76
11/21/2017		DIRT INC	200.00
11/21/2017		DISH	110.03
11/21/2017		DISTRICT ATTORNEYS FUND	4,074.50
11/21/2017		DIXIE BUILDING SUPPLY CO INC	208.80
11/21/2017			1,649.17
11/21/2017			30.49
11/21/2017			1,462.20
		EMPIRE TRUCK SALES INC	161.29
11/21/2017			156.00
11/21/2017 11/21/2017	00341334	EMS SAFETY SERVICES INC EQUIPMENT SALES CO	2,250.00 1,123.64
11/21/2017		ERWIN ESQ, MARK C	54.57
11/21/2017			1,479.04
11/21/2017		EVANS	152.49
11/21/2017			282.00
11/21/2017			48,032.83
11/21/2017			159.60
11/21/2017		G G PORTABLES INC	100.78
11/21/2017		GENERAL FUND	11,159.32
11/21/2017		GENERAL FUND	27,839.81
11/21/2017			1,743.69
11/21/2017		GRAHAM, APRIL M	180.00
11/21/2017			4,464.59
11/21/2017		GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION	1,442.96
11/21/2017		GRIFFICE PRINTING CO	421.00
11/21/2017	00341350	GROVE HILL POLICE DEPT	866.01

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/21/2017	00341351	GULF COAST RIGHT OF WAY SERVIC	3,158.75
11/21/2017	00341352	GULF COAST TRUCK AND EQUIPMENT	53.61
11/21/2017	00341353	HAVEN HILL EGG CO INC	89.40
11/21/2017	00341354	HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAINTENAN	57.81
11/21/2017	00341355	HEALTH INSURANCE ACCOUNT	927,183.00
11/21/2017	00341356	HEALTH INSURANCE ACCOUNT	250,000.00
11/21/2017	00341357	HOLLAND INDUSTRIAL SERVICES IN	14,635.00
11/21/2017	00341358	HOME DEPOT, THE	15.54
11/21/2017	00341359	HUTCHINSON MOORE AND RAUCH LLC	3,203.43
11/21/2017	00341360	INDIGENT CARE FUND	52,419.50
11/21/2017	00341361	INDUSTRIAL TOOLBOX INC	1,397.70
11/21/2017		INFORMATION TRANSPORT SOLUTION	36,810.00
11/21/2017		INGENUITY INC	17,000.00
11/21/2017		ISLANDAIRE INC	164.98
11/21/2017		J T RAY COMPANY	40.00
11/21/2017		JASPER DESK CO INC	106.00
11/21/2017		JASPER DESK CO INC	5,874.55
11/21/2017		JBT POWER	852.87
11/21/2017		JOHN G WALTON CONSTRUCTION CO	14,996.84
11/21/2017		JOHN G WALTON CONSTRUCTION CO	102,857.82
11/21/2017		JSI/DIV JASPER SEATING CO INC	2,451.25
11/21/2017		KENWORTH OF MOBILE INC	123.38
11/21/2017		KENWORTH OF MOBILE INC	175.52
11/21/2017		KITTRELL AUTO GLASS LLC	615.00
11/21/2017		KNOX PEST CONTROL	200.00
11/21/2017		LEGAL SECURITY SERVICES LLC	1,904.00
11/21/2017		LEOS UNIFORMS	1,735.60
11/21/2017		LOWES	477.83
11/21/2017		MARINE AND INDUSTRIAL CURRY	23.00 40.67
11/21/2017		MARINE AND INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY MCCONNELL AUTOMOTIVE CORP	277.38
		MCCONNELL AUTOMOTIVE GROUP	
11/21/2017		MCDONALD MUFFLER	794.32 1,100.00
11/21/2017		MCGRIFF TIRE CO	4,909.71
11/21/2017		METALS USA	263.10
11/21/2017		MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL IN	32,045.00
11/21/2017		MIGHTY AUTO PARTS	950.40
11/21/2017		MIKE & JERRY'S AUTO PARTS COMP	500.10
		MIKE HOFFMANS EQUIPMENT SERVIC	1,388.00
11/21/2017		MOBILE AREA WATER AND SEWER SY	57,373.09
11/21/2017		MOBILE CASH AND CARRY	428.40
11/21/2017		MOBILE CO HEALTH DEPT	9,572.97
11/21/2017		MOBILE CO WATER SEWER AND FIRE	36.05
11/21/2017		MOBILE MACHINE AND HYDRAULICS	193.80
11/21/2017		MONROE COUNTY COMMISSION	405.25
11/21/2017		MOORE MEDICAL LLC	127.67
11/21/2017	00341397	MULLINAX FORD OF MOBILE LLC	3,319.38
11/21/2017	00341398	NELSON, THOMAS E	16.05
11/21/2017	00341399	NUDRAULIX INC	62.84
11/21/2017	00341400	O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC	1,104.97
11/21/2017	00341401	OEC BUSINESS SUPPLIES	3,846.30
11/21/2017	00341402	OFFICE ENVIRONMENTS	1,400.00
11/21/2017	00341403	PERFECTING THAT CLEANING SERVI	830.00
11/21/2017	00341404	PETER PEPPERS PRODUCTS INC	12,406.54

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/21/2017	00341405	PINNACLE NETWORX LLC	2,784.00
11/21/2017	00341406	PITMAN CO	85.72
11/21/2017	00341407	PITTS AND SONS INC	200.00
11/21/2017	00341408	POPE TESTING SERVICES LLC	11,536.00
11/21/2017	00341409	PRECISION AUTO GLASS INC	45.00
11/21/2017	00341410	PRESSURE PRODUCTS INC	177.57
11/21/2017	00341411	PRINTING PLUS	175.00
11/21/2017	00341412	PROBATE COURT	822.03
11/21/2017	00341413	PROBATE COURT	15.50
11/21/2017	00341414	PROBATE COURT	15.50
11/21/2017	00341415	PROBATE COURT	9.00
11/21/2017	00341416	PROBATE COURT	3,458.15
11/21/2017	00341417	RADIATORS INC	82.00
11/21/2017	00341418	REGIONS BANK	1,642,065.68
11/21/2017	00341419	REGIONS BANK	8,331.25
11/21/2017	00341420	REPUBLIC SERVICES 986	2,555.03
11/21/2017	00341421	RETIF OIL AND FUEL LLC	48,456.53
11/21/2017	00341422	S AND S WORLDWIDE INC	720.24
11/21/2017	00341423	SARALAND CITY SCHOOL SYSTEM	582.03
11/21/2017	00341424	SATSUMA SCHOOL SYSTEM	273.10
11/21/2017	00341425	SATSUMA WATER AND SEWER	1,450.00
11/21/2017	00341426	SELMA POLICE DEPARTMENT	1,224.00
11/21/2017	00341427	SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM OF MO	9,800.89
	00341428	SHARP ELECTRONICS CORP	3,244.35
11/21/2017	00341429	SHELL	1,664.48
11/21/2017	00341430	SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP	3,967.97
		SHORELINE ENVIRONMENTAL INC	40.00
		SHRED IT US HOLD CO INC	139.13
		SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP	1,540.00
, , -	00341434	SKILLPATH SEMINARS	155.95
		SNAP ON TOOLS	4,782.30
		SOUTHERN DISTRIBUTORS	1,117.99
		SOUTHERN LAND DEVELOPMENT	16,153.83
		SPRINGDALE TRAVEL	362.60
		SPROT PRINTER RIBBONS LLC	354.00
		STANLEY STEEMER	1,167.36 552.40
		SUNNY BROOK CONCRETE SUPREME MEDICAL	718.00
		SYCAMORE CONSTRUCTION INC	242,829.12
		TAX TRUST ACCOUNT	371.74
	00341445	TE LLC	27.49
11/21/2017	00341446	THOMASVILLE POLICE DEPT	1,948.25
	00341447	THOMPSON ENGINEERING	3,809.31
	00341448	THOMPSON TRACTOR CO INC	580.28
	00341449		218.58
	00341450	TOWN OF ELBERTA	430.50
	00341451	TOWN OF EXCEL	859.99
	00341452	TOWN OF PINE HILL	610.32
	00341453	TRACTOR AND EQUIPMENT CO	1,542.19
11/21/2017	00341454	TRUCK EQUIPMENT SALES INC	406.50
11/21/2017	00341455	VOLKERT INC	2,960.00
11/21/2017	00341456	VRECA, ANGELA	80.00
11/21/2017	00341457	VULCAN MATERIALS CO	17,180.39
11/21/2017	00341458	WARD INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS OF A	1,803.84

CHECK DATE	CHECK #		VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/21/2017	00341459	WEAVER AN	D SONS INC, HOSEA O	103,183.45
11/21/2017	00341460	WEAVER AN	D SONS INC, HOSEA O	7,541.85
11/21/2017	00341461	WILSON DI	SMUKES INC	1,742.51
	Total Cla	aims Paid f	or General Invoices	\$ 7,174,564.15
11/16/2017	00000125	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	700.93
11/20/2017	00000126	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	6,272.92
11/20/2017	00000356	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	1,461,429.95
11/16/2017	00000590	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	679,665.39
11/8/2017	00001034	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	745.80
11/20/2017	00001035	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	45,784.54
11/8/2017	00001115	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	10.70
11/16/2017	00001116	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	12,986.29
11/20/2017	00001117	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	290,861.95
11/16/2017	00001202	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	134,219.74
11/20/2017	00001203	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	10,382.76
11/20/2017	00001261	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	103,183.45
11/8/2017	00001348	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	1,982.85
11/16/2017	00001349	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	663.50
11/8/2017	00001404	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	32,321.97
11/16/2017	00001405	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	245.00
11/20/2017	00001406	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	108,963.13
11/8/2017	00001580	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	2,775.00
11/16/2017	00001581	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	92,740.74
11/20/2017	00001582	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	16,153.83
11/20/2017	00001901	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	62,674.19
11/8/2017	00001932	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	114.49
11/16/2017	00001933	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	38,053.12
11/7/2017	00002621	MOBILE CO	EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT	2,459.28
11/8/2017	00002622	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	4,791.00
11/8/2017	00002623	MOBILE CO	PAYROLL ACCOUNT	3,000.00
11/9/2017	00002624	MOBILE CO	FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	229.50
11/16/2017	00002625	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	29,612.95
11/20/2017	00002626	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	13,752.89
11/7/2017	00004590	MOBILE CO	EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT	74,837.23
11/8/2017	00004591	MOBILE CO	PAYROLL ACCOUNT	509,189.44
11/9/2017	00004592	MOBILE CO	FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	37,446.07
11/9/2017	00004593	MOBILE CO	PAYROLL ACCOUNT	120.00
11/13/2017	00004594		FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	9.18
11/13/2017	00004595	MOBILE CO	PAYROLL ACCOUNT	977.96
11/14/2017	00004596	MOBILE CO	FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	74.82
11/16/2017	00004597	MOBILE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	5,972.78
11/20/2017	00004598		ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	182,680.00
11/7/2017	00004746	MOBILE CO	EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT	598.10
11/8/2017	00004747	MOBILE CO	PAYROLL ACCOUNT	4,353.60
11/9/2017	00004748		FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	312.84
11/16/2017	00004749		ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	34.45
11/20/2017	00004750		ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	6,888.66
11/7/2017	00006313		EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT	17,671.44
11/8/2017	00006314		ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	763.34
11/8/2017	00006315		PAYROLL ACCOUNT	114,244.19
11/9/2017	00006316		FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	8,471.08
11/16/2017	00006317	WORITE CO	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	144,583.02

CHECK DATE	CHECK #	VENDOR	AMOUNT
11/20/2017	00006318	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	41,420.19
11/8/2017	00010302	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	101,190.91
11/16/2017	00010303	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	51,489.44
11/20/2017	00010304	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	23,683.68
11/8/2017	00014144	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	68,544.42
11/16/2017	00014145	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	197,726.08
11/20/2017	00014146	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	85,930.39
11/7/2017	00082200	MOBILE CO EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT	372,790.91
11/8/2017	00082201	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	401,507.29
11/8/2017	00082202	MOBILE CO PAYROLL ACCOUNT	2,291,385.85
11/9/2017	00082203	MOBILE CO FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNT	169,441.45
11/16/2017	00082204	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	500,033.99
11/20/2017	00082205	MOBILE CO ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACC	1,504,120.49
	Total Cla	ims Paid for Treasury Division	\$ 10,075,271.15
		Total Claims Paid	\$ 17,249,835.30

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #2

# HOLD PUBLIC HEARING/FUND BALANCE REPORT-10/31/2017

President Ludgood asked if any citizen of the County wanted an opportunity to be heard, for or against any item related to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Report, for the period ending October 31, 2017. (Act No. 86-414)

There was no response.

\_\_\_\_\_

AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT OF BIDS/ PFP-2017-401/REHABILITATION OF CITY HALL AND COMMUNITY CENTER/SENIOR CENTER, BAYOU LA BATRE/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS/ADA UPGRADES

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board authorize advertisement of bids for PFP-2017-401, Rehabilitation of City Hall and Community Center/Senior Center, Bayou La Batre, funded by the Community Development Block Grant funds. This project provides for ADA upgrades.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #4

ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING REQUEST/LICENSE COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE/DISPOSE OF CERTAIN ITEMS FROM FIXED ASSETS INVENTORY LIST, DECLARE AS SURPLUS PROPERTY, AND AUTHORIZE DONATION/CONNIE HUDSON REGIONAL SENIOR COMMUNITY CENTER

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Mobile County Commission has control of all property belonging to the county and is authorized by state law to dispose of the same by order entered upon its minutes; and

WHEREAS, the County presently owns seventeen (17) HP Compact Elite computers, itemized and identified on \*Exhibit "A", assigned to the License Commissioner, which are obsolete and no longer needed; and

WHEREAS, patrons of the Connie Hudson Mobile Regional Senior Community Center, owned by the City of Mobile and Mobile County and operated by the City, would benefit from the donation of the computers to the Center;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mobile County Commission declares the computers itemized and identified on \*Exhibit "A" SURPLUS PROPERTY, to be removed from the fixed asset list and, further, finding that a public purpose will be served thereby, approves their donation to the Connie Hudson Mobile Regional Senior Community Center.

It is further DIRECTED that a copy of this resolution be entered upon the minutes of the regular meeting of the Mobile County Commission convened on this  $27^{\rm th}$  day of November, 2017.

#### \*Exhibit "A" on file in Administrator's Office

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #5

ADOPT SOLE SOURCE RESOLUTION APPROVING RENEWAL OF SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT/ASSESSMENT ADVISORS, LLC/REVENUE COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Mobile County Revenue Commission currently utilizes Income Works software developed and manufactured by Assessment Advisors, LLC, customized for Mobile County, Alabama, to develop income-based local market-specific appraisals of income producing properties; and

WHEREAS, a 2017 renewal license fee in the amount of \$58,000.00 fee is due; and

WHEREAS, upon investigation and review it has been determined that Assessment Advisors, LLC is the only provider of updated licenses for the Income Works software, which is patented, proprietary and unique;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mobile County Commission authorizes purchase of a 2017 renewal license fee for Income Works software from Assessment Advisors, LLC, at a cost of \$58,000.00.

APPROVE MUTUAL AGREEMENT/TERMINATE VETERINARY SERVICES CONTRACT/ DR. JENI L. KNIZLEY, L.L.C.

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a mutual agreement to terminate veterinary services contract with Dr. Jeni L. Knizley, L.L.C. effective November 30, 2017, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #7

APPROVE VETERINARY SERVICES CONTRACT/
IRBY-OVERTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL, P.C.,
D/B/A OVERTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a veterinary services contract with Irby-Overton Veterinary Hospital, P.C., d/b/a Overton Veterinary Hospital for the period December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2018, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

## AGENDA #8

APPROVE RECOMMENDATION/BOARD OF REVIEW FOR JUNK ORDINANCE HEARING/CITATION

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve the recommendation of the Board of Review for the Junk Ordinance hearing held November 14, 2017, for the following citation:

Citation #2645 - Dismissed

AUTHORIZE RENEWAL OF SUB-RECIPIENT
AGREEMENT/INDEPENDENT LIVING CENTER OF MOBILE
(MCD2-PF-13-004)/REHABILITATION OF FACILITY/
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board authorize renewal of a sub-recipient agreement with Independent Living Center of Mobile (MCD2-PF-13-004) until December 31, 2018 up to the amount of \$188,209.58 to provide funding for rehabilitation of a facility to provide services to persons with disabilities under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program subject to receipt of documentation satisfactory to the Grants Department, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #10

#### AWARD BID/ APPROVE PURCHASES

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board take the following action on bids:

award Bid #143-17, one (1) x-ray inspection system for the Thirteenth Judicial Court Police, to Astrophysics, Inc. for their total bid in the amount of \$23,969.00.

approve to purchase one (1) heavy duty dump truck chassis (Option A) and one (1) 16' steel dump body from the current ACCA County Joint Purchasing Program, for the Environmental Services Department.

approve to purchase one (1) new crew cab pick-up truck and one (1) quad cab pick-up truck from the current State of Alabama Contract T191, for the Public Works Department.

# APPROVE LEASE AGREEMENT/BERNEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS/THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL COURT POLICE

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a lease agreement with Berney Office Solutions for Xerox Versalink B7030S copier in the amount of \$109.66 per month, for thirty-six (36) months, from the current TCPN Contract R150302, for the Thirteenth Judicial Court Police, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #12

### APPROVE LEASE AGREEMENT/BERNEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS/COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATIONAL DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a lease agreement with Berney Office Solutions for Xerox Versalink C7025S copier in the amount of \$157.34, for thirty-six (36) months, from the current TCPN Contract R150302, for County Parks and Recreational Department, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #13

### APPROVE RENTAL CONTRACT/ STORAGEMAX/PROBATE COURT

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a rental contract with StorageMax in the amount of \$232.00 per month, for storage of back-up microfilm records, for Probate Court, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

APPROVE REQUEST FOR HEARING/MELVIN POUNDS/REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10765 CHRISTOPHER LANE, SEMMES, ALABAMA 36575/COUNTY COMMISSION TO DETERMINE WHETHER OR NOT BUILDING OR STRUCTURE CONSTITUTES PUBLIC NUISANCE

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: Is this for the hearing or to authorize a hearing?

County Attorney Jay Ross: For the hearing.

Commission President Ludgood: Is Mr. Pounds here?

County Attorney Ross: He wrote us a letter, we tried to reach him telephonically, and by mail, we were not successful in trying to follow the statute. We wanted him to have his hearing, and we gave him notification of this hearing by regular mail and certified mail.

Commission President Ludgood: So, he did have notice
by certified mail?

County Attorney Ross: Yes.

**Commission President Ludgood:** And you can tell us right now that we have satisfied our statutory requirements through a notice.

County Attorney Ross: Yes, ma'am, we have. We have someone from the Building Inspection Services Department that will make a few comments about the property.

County Building Official Thomas Waters: Good morning, Commissioners. The property located at 10765 Christopher Lane, Semmes, Alabama was severely damaged by a fire and in the months since, the windows and doors have been removed. Our technical structure engineer determined it could not be adequately made into a habitable structure again and from the appearance, it needs to be demolished and removed. We have complaints from the neighborhood of people entering in and out of the structure all hours of the day and night. We request the Commission declare the property as a public nuisance so we can remove this hazardousness from the community.

Commission President Ludgood: Thank you.

**Commissioner Carl:** Tom, I have received some more compliments on your Department in the last two (2) weeks. Good job.

County Building Official Waters: Thank you.

**Commission President Ludgood:** What is the pleasure of the Commission?

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve determination that the real property located at 10765 Christopher Lane, Semmes, Alabama constitutes a public nuisance.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #15

APPROVE EFP-110-18/CONTRACT/ SCARBOROUGH MIDDLE SCHOOL PTA/

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve EFP-110-18, contract with Scarborough Middle School PTA in the amount of \$4,000.00, from District 1 funds, to benefit the Campus Beautification Program, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

### AGENDA #16

APPROVE EFP-203-18/SPONSORSHIP/ MURPHY HIGH SCHOOL PTSA

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the approve EFP-203-18, sponsorship with Murphy High School PTSA in the amount of \$1,000.00, from District 2 funds, for its 2018 Panther Pride 5K Run.

# APPROVE EFP-204-18/CONTRACT/ DENTON MAGNET SCHOOL OF TECHNOLOGY PTA

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve EFP-204-18, contract with Denton Magnet School of Technology PTA in the amount of \$12,500.00, from District 2 funds, to purchase technology and band equipment, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

#### AGENDA #18

#### APPROVE EFP-205-18/CONTRACT/ SEMMES MIDDLE SCHOOL PTO

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve EFP-205-18, contract with Semmes Middle School PTO in the amount of \$20,000.00, from District 2 funds, to purchase technology equipment, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

## AGENDA #19

APPROVE EFP-206-18/CONTRACT/
TAYLOR-WHITE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PTA

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve EFP-206-18, contract with Taylor-White Elementary School PTA in the amount of \$20,000.00, from District 2 funds, to purchase technology equipment, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

# APPROVE APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE/JNJ ENTERPRISES, LLC

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve the application of JNJ Enterprises, LLC, for transfer of lounge retail liquor license - Class II (package), for JNJ Package Store, 6095 Old Pascagoula Road, Suite D., Theodore, Alabama 36582. (District 3)

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #21

APPROVE RENEWAL OF EQUIPMENT SUPPORT SERVICES CONTRACT/TIMECLOCK MAINTENANCE/ KRONOS INCORPORATED/PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve renewal of an equipment support services contract for TimeClock maintenance with Kronos Incorporated in the amount of \$3,556.80, for the period February 23, 2018 through February 22, 2019, for use of the Public Works Department, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #22

# APPROVE REVISED MOTOR VEHICLE OPERATIONS POLICY

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve the revised Motor Vehicle Operations Policy to be effective January 1, 2018. The changes to the policy have been made to adequately reflect the current "Drug and Alcohol Policy" and the "Usage of Wireless Communication Devices While Driving Policy."

APPROVE CORRECTION IN NOVEMBER 12, 2017 MINUTES/AGENDA ITEM #47/CHANGE JOB TITLE OF PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/ CHIEF ENGINEER OF THE DIVISION OF PUBLIC ROADS

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: Will you put on record why this was necessary?

County Administrator John Pafenbach: Yes, ma'am. As I understand, it is necessary to conform with the state code as far as responsibility for maintenance on the roads.

**County Commissioner Jerry L. Carl:** So we can get reimbursement as Chief Engineer that is the reason for the wording.

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve correction in the November 13, 2017 Minutes, Agenda Item #47; to change the job title of Public Works Director to Public Works Director/Chief Engineer of the Division of Public Roads.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #24

APPROVE EFP-207-18/CONTRACT/ BOARD OF SCHOOL COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve EFP-207-18, contract with Board of School Commissioners (to benefit Cranford Burns Middle School) in the amount of \$22,000.00, from District 2 funds, to purchase technology and music equipment, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVE RENEWAL OF SOFTWARE SUPPORT
SUBSCRIPTION/TIMEKEEPING SYSTEMS,
INCORPORATED/JAMES T. STRICKLAND YOUTH CENTER

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve renewal of a three (3) year software support subscription with TimeKeeping Systems, Incorporated in the amount of \$795.00, for software updates and upgrades, for the James T. Strickland Youth Center.

### AGENDA #26

APPROVE SEVEN AND ONE-HALF (7.5%) BLANKET INCREASE/INVESTIGATION & RECOVERY AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS CENTER/AMEND BUDGET ACCORDINGLY

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a seven and one-half percent (7.5%) blanket increase for those positions in Investigation & Recovery and the Community Corrections Center that require the incumbent to be a sworn Police Officer, and to amend the budget accordingly.

Motion carried unanimously.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #27

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT/ DIGITAL ASSURANCE CERTIFICATION (DAC)/POST BOND/WARRANT ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a professional services contract with Digital Assurance Certification (DAC) in the amount of \$5,000.00, for the first year, and \$2,500.00 per year thereafter, for Post Bond/Warrant Issuance compliance requirements, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the contract on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)/TOWN OF DAUPHIN ISLAND/USE OF COUNTY-OWNED BARRICADES DURING PARADES

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Town of Dauphin Island for the use of County-owned barricades during two (2) parades, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #29

ADOPT RESOLUTION AND ORDER AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS, SERIES 2017/AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$23,000,000.00

Commissioner Jerry L. Carl: Can you explain what we are doing? Are we issuing an okay to borrow the twenty-three million dollars (\$23,000,000.00)?

County Attorney Jay Ross: Yes, and then we will come back on Thursday and approve the actual purchase.

Commissioner Carl: What are we spending the twenty-three million dollars (\$23,000,000.00) on?

County Administrator John Pafenbach: This is the new phase of the Capital Improvement Plan. The bulk of this will be allocated to the Metro Jail to correct a lot of deficiencies found in the National Institute for Jail Operations (NIJO) Study done August 5, 2015.

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: Fifteen million dollars (\$15,000,000.00) of that.

County Administrator Pafenbach: Yes, ma'am. The balance will be for Capital projects the County has and for projects in each Commissioners' District.

**Commissioner Carl:** I asked for a list of that breakdown. I have received the packet, but there was no breakdown in it. Do we have a breakdown?

County Administrator Pafenbach: Yes, sir, we will get it to you today.

Finance Director Dana Foster-Allen: Yes, I will be able to get that to you shortly after this meeting, I apologize.

Commissioner Carl: That's okay.

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board adopt the following resolution:

**BE IT RESOLVED** by the County Commission (the "Commission") of Mobile County, Alabama (the "County") as follows:

Section 1. <u>Findings of Fact.</u> The Commission has determined and hereby finds and declares the following facts are true and correct:

- (a) The Commission expects that the County will issue its General Obligation Warrants, Series 2017 (the "Warrants"), in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$23,000,000.00.
- (b) Prior to the offering and sale of the Warrants and adoption of an authorizing resolution providing for the terms thereof it is necessary and appropriate that the Commission approve certain actions taken or to be taken in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Warrants.

Section 2. Authorization with respect to the Warrants. The preparation and distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Warrants, in substantially the form presented at the meeting at which this resolution is adopted, is hereby ratified and affirmed. Such Preliminary Official Statement is hereby "deemed final" within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. The President of the Commission is hereby authorized to take or cause to be taken all such actions as are necessary and appropriate to present the Warrants to the Commission, including without limitation, preparation of authorizing proceedings for presentation to and approval of the Commission. In the event she determines that it is desirable to do so in order to obtain favorable interest rates with respect to the Warrants, the President of the County Commission is hereby authorized to execute a Warrant Purchase Agreement between the County and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and Piper Jaffray & Co. with respect to the sale of the Warrants, which Warrant Purchase Agreement shall be expressly made subject, however, to final approval by the Commission of an Authorizing Resolution with respect to the Warrants approving the principal maturity amounts, interest rates and other terms thereof.

Upon motion duly made that the foregoing resolution and order be adopted and spread upon the minutes of this meeting, which motion was seconded, and, upon the said motion being put to vote, the following vote was recorded:

YEAS NAYS

President Merceria Ludgood Commissioner Connie Hudson Commissioner Jerry Carl

The chairman thereupon announced that the motion for adoption of the said resolution and order had been unanimously carried.

#### AGENDA #30

APPROVE RIGHT-OF-WAY AGREEMENT/MOBILE COUNTY, ALABAMA, GULF SOUTH PIPELINE COMPANY, LP AND ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ALDOT)/CONSTRUCT WIDENING/PROJECT MCR-2008-005/SCHILLINGER ROAD NORTH/ALDOT PROJECT STPMBF-STPAAF-7503(601)

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve a right-of-way agreement by and between Mobile County, Alabama, Gulf South Pipeline Company, LP, and the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) to allow ALDOT and the County to construct the widening Project MCR-2008-005, Schillinger Road North, ALDOT Project STPMBF-STPAAF-7503(601), within the existing Gulf South utility right-of-way. Authorize the President of the County Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #31

APPROVE REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT/ALABAMA
POWER COMPANY/PROPOSED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS/
PROJECT MCR-2012-001/TANNER WILLIAMS ROAD

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a reimbursable agreement with Alabama Power Company for the relocation of utility facilities in conflict with proposed roadway improvements

on Project MCR-2012-001, Tanner Williams Road. The estimated cost to Mobile County is \$403,627.00, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #32

### AUTHORIZE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND ACCEPTANCE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board authorize acquisition of property and acceptance of right-of-way deed from the following property owners, for the following project:

Beverly A. House & Mellinie House

deed

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #33

### APPROVE JEREMIAH DENTON AIRPORT SECURITY PROCEDURES

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve the Jeremiah Denton Airport Security Procedures, revised December 2017.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #34

APPROVE CE & I AGREEMENT/
NEEL-SCHAFFER, INC. MOBILE COUNTY/
PROJECT TAPMB-TA16(945)/MCP-002-16/ADA
COMPLIANT CURB RAMPS/VARIOUS LOCATIONS

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve CE & I Agreement between Neel-Schaffer, Inc. and Mobile County in the amount of \$32,322.69 for Project TAPMB-TA16(945)/MCP-002-16, ADA

compliant curb ramps at various locations, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #35

ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING REQUEST/
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT/DISPOSE OF VEHICLE
FROM FIXED ASSETS INVENTORY LIST, DECLARE AS
SURPLUS PROPERTY, AND AUTHORIZE VEHICLE
TO BE DISPOSED OF BY LAWFUL MEANS

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Mobile County Commission has control of all property belonging to the County and is authorized by state law to dispose of the same by order entered upon its minutes; and

WHEREAS, the County presently owns a 2000 Ford Windstar, VIN 2FMZA5240YBA34723, Vehicle No. 1477, assigned to the Public Works Department, which is in poor condition and no longer needed;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mobile County Commission that above described vehicle be, and it is hereby declared SURPLUS and removed from the fixed asset list, to be disposed of by lawful means.

It is further DIRECTED that a copy of this resolution be entered upon the minutes of the regular meeting of the Mobile County Commission convened on this  $27^{\rm th}$  day of November, 2017.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

# APPROVE PURCHASING INTERNATIONAL TRUCK/NATIONAL JOINT POWERS ALLIANCE (NJPA)/PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve purchasing one (1) new International Truck with a LeeBoy Maximizer Asphalt Distributor from National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA), for the Public Works Department.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #37

### APPROVE PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT/DEER CREST UNIT ONE

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve preliminary and final plat of Deer Crest Unit One. (9 lots, Grand Bay - Wilmer Road South, District 3)

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #38

### APPROVE PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT/HARRIET EARLEY SUBDIVISION

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve preliminary and final plat of Harriet Earley Subdivision. (2 lots, Grand Bay - Wilmer Road South, District 3)

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #39

## ADOPT RESOLUTION SETTING SPEED LIMITS

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board adopt the following resolution:

WHEREAS, Code of Alabama (1975), 32-1-1, et seq. and 32-5A-173, authorize local authorities to establish reasonable and safe maximum speed limits upon highways, parts of highways, or arterial streets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Alabama Code (1975), 32-5A-173 (a), MOBILE COUNTY has conducted engineering and traffic investigations, and, based upon said investigations, determined that the maximum speed permitted under Alabama Code (1975), 32-5A-170, et seq. on certain of those highways, parts of highways or arterial streets is greater than is reasonable and safe under the conditions found to exist upon said highways, parts of highways, or arterial streets; and

WHEREAS, MOBILE COUNTY desires to declare a reasonable and safe maximum speed limit on said highways, parts of highways or arterial streets pursuant to said statute;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the MOBILE COUNTY COMMISSION, determines and declares that reasonable and safe maximum speed limits shall be set for its highways, portions of highways or arterial streets as set out below:

#### New Roads added to inventory

COLLETON PLACE 25 MPH

Colleton Drive East Fairlawn Drive

GREENLAWN 20 MPH

Schillinger Road North Service Road

#### Revised Speed Limits to existing roads:

CAMELLIA PLACE 20 MPH

Azalea Court
Camellia Cicle East
Camellia Circle North
Camellia Circle South
Camellia Circle West
Camellia Drive
Maple Drive
Pecan Court

GREENLAWN 20 MPH

Alta Fescue Drive Bermuda Drive Blue Grass Way Carpet Way Matrella Drive St. Augustine Drive

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #40

APPROVE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND/OR EASEMENT
AGREEMENT/TRACT 2/PROJECT
MCR-2014-306/JOE CARL ROAD SOUTH

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve a right-of-way and/or easement agreement for Tract 2 in the amount of \$1,500.00, for Project MCR-2014-306, Joe Carl Road South, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

#### AGENDA #41

AWARD BID/PROJECT MCR-2016-103/ CITRONELLE STREETS RESURFACING/ MOBILE ASPHALT COMPANY, L.L.C.

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board award the bid for Project MCR-2016-103, Citronelle Streets Resurfacing, to Mobile Asphalt Company, L.L.C. for their bid in the amount of \$237,362.44.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

AWARD BID/PROJECT MCR-2014-305/
GRAND TERRACE CIRCLE NORTH, GRAND
TERRACE CIRCLE WEST, GRAND TERRACE
CIRCLE SOUTH, MATADOR DRIVE, SIESTA
COURT, SPANISH TRAIL AND SPANISH TRAIL
WEST - GRAIN, DRAIN, BASE AND PAVE (GDBP)/
JOHN G. WALTON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board award the bid for Project MCR-2014-305, Grand Terrace Circle North, Grand Terrace Circle West, Grand Terrace Circle South, Matador Drive, Siesta Court, Spanish Trail and Spanish Trail West - Grain, Drain, Base and Pave (GDBP), to John G. Walton Construction Company, Inc. for their bid in the amount of \$1,905,397.00.

#### AGENDA #43

APPROVE SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1/JOHN G. WALTON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC./PROJECT MCR-2010-013/COTTAGE HILL ROAD AT MCFARLAND ROAD

Commissioner Carl moved, seconded by Commissioner Hudson, that the Board approve Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with John G. Walton Construction Company, Inc., Project MCR-2010-013, Cottage Hill Road at McFarland Road for the addition of three (3) items, increasing the contract in the estimated amount of \$7,208.83, and authorize the President of the Commission to execute the agreement on behalf of Mobile County.

Motion carried unanimously.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #44

### COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS AND/OR COMMENTS

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: Bryan, in our next meeting could you give us an update on where we are with Highway 98 ALDOT Project with that little BP money we got so we will know, and we can let the public know.

**Commission President Ludgood:** Martha, you did a great job on your ADA Compliance Report. Could you give that report at our next meeting as well.

Commission President Ludgood: I like to congratulate Ricky for his efforts in working with Sherri Mims. We were able to get an ADECA grant in excess of two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000.00) to do some upgrades to Chickasabogue Park. I know y'all really worked hard in getting that done. We have applied lots of years and this is the first time in my memory we have been successful.

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: We have some retirees effective December 1, 2017, as follows:

Timothy Demings, Metro Jail, 26 years and 4 months.

Mary Johnston, Revenue Commissioner's Office, 10 years.

Joseph Slade, Sr., Building Maintenance Department, 26 years and 3 months.

Karen Slaughter, Engineering Department, 22 years and 9 months.

Ora Wiggins, Custodial Department, 18 years.

Ramona Yeager, Revenue Commissioner's Office, 43 years and 2 months.

**Commission President Ludgood:** We wish them the best of luck, and I know we all wish we were sitting in their seats. We thank them for their service, and we wish them the best of luck, good health and all of that.

County Administrator John Pafenbach: The Commission needs to recess until Thursday, November 30, 2017, at 10:30 A. M., so we can come back and approve the sale of the warrants.

County Attorney Jay Ross: Correct. The meeting
should take no more than five (5) minutes.

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: We will recess until November 30, 2017, at what time?

County Attorney Ross: 10:00 A. M.

Commissioner Connie Hudson: Somehow that did not get
on my calendar.

Commission President Ludgood: Mine either.

Commissioner Jerry L. Carl: Not on mine either.

Commissioner Hudson: I am sure I am going to have to cancel something to be there.

County Attorney Ross: I would estimate we will be out of that meeting by 10:10 A. M.

County Administrator Pafenbach: At the latest.

Commissioner Hudson: Okay, 10:00 A. M., Thursday.

Commissioner Hudson: When was this scheduled?

County Attorney Ross: We can move it earlier in the
morning I am told.

Commissioner Carl: 10:30 A. M. would work for me.

County Attorney Ross: Would it better for Commissioner Hudson?

Commissioner Hudson: I have no idea, I do not have my
calendar with me.

County Attorney Ross: I think 10:30 A. M. will be fine.

Commissioner Hudson: I will try my very best to be here.

County Attorney Ross: We will be out of here at
10:40 A. M. or less.

Commissioner Carl: 10:30 A. M. will be great for me.

Commission President Ludgood: Just confirm with everybody's calendar, I'm good.

County Attorney Ross: We will currently say for
10:30 A. M.

Commissioner Carl: Thank you.

#### AGENDA #45

#### RECESS

The chairman then announced that it would be necessary and appropriate to recess the meeting until Thursday, November 30, 2017, at 10:30 A. M. in order to consider a resolution authorizing the issuance of the County's General Obligation Warrants, Series 2017, and instructed the Administrator and Clerk to post notice of such Recessed Regular Meeting in accordance with applicable law.

There being no further business, the meeting was, on motion duly made by Commissioner Hudson, seconded by Commissioner Carl, recessed to Thursday, November 30, 2017, at 10:30 A.M.

Motion carried unanimously.

\_\_\_\_\_

The Mobile County Commission reconvened in its regular session in the Government Plaza Auditorium, in the City of Mobile, Alabama, on Thursday, November 30, 2017, at 10:30 A. M.

Commissioner Hudson moved, seconded by Commissioner Carl, that the Board approve a request for motion to reconvene its regular meeting of November 27, 2017.

Motion carried unanimously.

#### AGENDA #46

ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF COUNTY'S GENERAL OBLIGATION WARRANTS, SERIES 2017

County Administrator John Pafenbach: Commissioners, the staff have had several conference calls this past week with the underwriters and the Financial Advisor and his team. It is the consensus of all involved that the

Commission does not issue the warrants at this time due to market conditions and look at things after the first of the year. So I ask y'all not to vote on agenda item number two (2).

**Commissioner Connie Hudson:** We anticipate issuing these right after the first of the year or are we just going to continue to monitor the interest rates' condition or what?

County Administrator Pafenbach: The consensus seems to be that in January, we will look at the market anticipating that the condition will be more favorable.

Commissioner Hudson: Okay.

Commission President Merceria Ludgood: So can we hold it over to a certain date? For example, hold it over until our second meeting in January.

County Administrator Pafenbach: Sure, if you like to.

Commissioner Hudson: Okay, I think that is a good
idea.

Finance Director Dana Foster-Allen: Commissioner Ludgood, I have a little bit more insight that may explain it. I do not know if you are aware, but a part of the new tax legislation is going to disallow counties and cities from advanced refunding debt, so everybody is trying to flood the market with their advanced refunding. Normally, wherein the market, you have about \$7 billion worth of issuance or debt available, it is now at \$20 billion. We are hoping, once all that settles down, come January in the first or second week, we can go ahead and issue, once it slows down.

Commissioner Hudson: Okay, that makes sense.

**Commission President Ludgood:** So did the tax-exempt bonds survive in the new tax legislation?

Finance Director Foster-Allen: It is still there.

**Commission President Ludgood:** That is one of the things the National Association of Counties was looking at them trying to eliminate tax-exempt bonds completely.

Finance Director Foster-Allen: It made it to the Senate side, so it is still there as of today.

Commission President Ludgood: All right.

Finance Director Foster-Allen: Thank you.

	Commis	ssior	ner	Hud	son :	moved,	seco	nded	by (	Commissio	onei	<u>-</u>
Carl,	, that	the	Воа	rd	hold	this	item	over	and	revisit	at	the
meeti	ing of	Janı	uary	22	, 20	18.						

Motion carried unanimous	ly.										
AGEN	IDA #48										
ADo	ADJOURN										
Commissioner Hudson move Carl, that the Board approve adjourn until December 11, 20											
Motion carried unanimous	ly.										
	Merceria Ludgood, President										
	Connie Hudson, Member										
	Jerry L. Carl, Member										
ATTEST:											
John Pafenbach, County Admini	strator										